
NCCFD AGENDA – REGULAR BOARD MEETING (A1) 
February 16, 2023 

Nevada County Consolidated Fire District 

640 Coyote Street 
Nevada City, CA 95959 
(530) 265-4431
FAX 265-4438

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Keith Grueneberg, President 
Patricia Nelson, Vice President 
Barry Dorland 
Tom Carrington 
Spencer Garrett 
Jon Hall 
Marianne Slade-Troutman 

STAFF 
Jason Robitaille, Fire Chief 
Pat Sullivan, Division Chief 

Patrick Mason, Fire Marshal 
Kevin Greene, Fleet and Facilities Supervisor 

Nicole Long, Administrative Services Manager 
Kaitlin Purvis, Finance Administrative Assistant 

Tricia Bush, Administrative Services Assistant 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
REGULAR MEETING- AMENDED AGENDA 

THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 16, 2023– 7:00 PM 
NEVADA COUNTY CONSOLIDATED FIRE DISTRICT, 11329 MCCOURTNEY ROAD, GRASS VALLEY, CA 95949 

Pursuant to Governor Gavin Newsom’s Executive Order pertaining to the convening of public meetings in response to 
the COVID-19 pandemic, the Nevada County Consolidated Fire District will hold its regularly scheduled meeting. This 
meeting is open to in-person attendance. To remain in compliance with the state public health guidance, face coverings 
are strongly recommended to be worn by all individuals while indoors. The Public’s and Employee’s health and well-
being are the top priority for the Board of Directors of the Nevada County Consolidated Fire District, and you are urged 
to take all the appropriate health safety precautions. 

Tricia Bush, Board Secretary 
(530) 265-4431 

triciabush@nccfire.com 

The Board of Directors welcomes you to its meetings and your participation is encouraged and appreciated.  Any 
Member of the Audience desiring to address the Board on a matter appearing on the agenda, before or during 
consideration of the item, may do so after receiving recognition from the presiding officer.  In order for all interested 
parties to have an opportunity to speak, please limit your comments to the specific item under discussion. For further 
rules on public comment and other matters, please see the last page of this agenda. 

NOTICE 
If requested, this agenda can be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a disability, as 
required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and the Federal Rules and Regulations adopted in 
the implementation thereof.  Persons seeking an alternative format should contact the Clerk of the Board for further 
information.   

All items posted on the agenda, including under correspondence, may be acted upon by the Board of 
Directors.  However, matters under committee reports and department manager's reports may be briefly addressed by 
the Board or Staff but no action or discussion shall be undertaken on any item not appearing on the posted agenda. (GC 
54954.2) 

The Board of Directors may hold a Closed Session as the agenda schedule permits. 

www.nccfire.com 
nccfire@nccfire.com 

mailto:triciabush@nccfire.com
http://www.nccfire.com/
mailto:nccfire@nccfire.com


NCCFD AGENDA – REGULAR BOARD MEETING (A2) 
FEBRUARY 16, 2023 

STANDING ORDERS: 
7:00 p.m. Call to Order 
Roll Call 
Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag 
Corrections and/or deletions to the agenda 

*PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA
Per CA Government Code 54954.3 

This is the time for any member of the public to address the Board on any item not on this Agenda that is within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the NCCFD Board.  Please wait for recognition from the presiding officer. The Board generally cannot act on or 
discuss an item not on the agenda.  However, the Board may “briefly respond” to comments or questions from the members of the 
public.  Please see the rules for public comment at the end of this agenda. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
These items are considered to be routine and may be enacted by one motion by the Board of Directors. There will be no separate 
discussion of these items.  If discussion is desired, any board or staff member or interested party may request that an item be 
removed from the Consent Calendar to be considered separately.  

1. Acceptance of Minutes – January 19, 2023
2. Fund Balances, Check History Report and Credit Card History Report
3. Engagement Letter with Willdan Financial Services and the Nevada County Consolidated Fire District

for Assessment and Special Tax Levy’s (reoccurring)

COMMITTEE REPORTS 
STANDING COMMITTEES 

FINANCE/BUDGET: HALL, Slade-Troutman  
PERSONNEL: Carrington, Garrett, Nelson 

AD HOC COMMITTEES 
BOARD POLICY AND PROCEDURES: Grueneberg 
CONSOLIDATION: Grueneberg, Dorland, Carrington 

LOCAL AGENCY ASSIGNMENTS 
NEVADA COUNTY FIRE AGENCY (JPA): Garrett, Robitaille 

NEW BUSINESS 

4. Discussion and Possible Action, Resolution R23-02, Accepting the Lowest Responsible Bid 
($31,105.00) Russell Davidson Architecture + Design, for Station 86 Architectural Services. 
Fleet & Facilities Supervisor Greene

5. Discussion and Possible Action, Request for Proposal for Fiscal Year 22/23 Financial Audit. 
Admin. Svcs. Long

6. Discussion and Possible Action, Request for Proposal for Professional Fire and Life Safety 
Inspection Services.   Fire Marshal Mason

7. Correspondence.
7A. Thank you card and donation 

8. Discussion and Possible Action, California Special Districts Association (CSDA) Board of Directors
Call for Nominations Seat C. President Grueneberg

9. Discussion and Possible Action, Union Article Regarding Rough & Ready Fire. President Grueneberg



NCCFD AGENDA – REGULAR BOARD MEETING (A3) 
FEBRUARY 16, 2023 

CHIEF’S MONTHLY REPORT  

*BOARD DISCUSSION

ADJOURNMENT 

Board Meeting Schedule 
All Regular Board Meetings will take place on the third Thursday of the month.  

Copies 
Copies of the agenda documents relative to an agenda item may be obtained at the Administrative Office, 
640 Coyote Street, Nevada City, CA 95959, at a cost of $1.00 dollar per page.  

Board Meeting Notices 
This Regular Meeting Agenda was posted 72 hours in advance of the meeting at the following locations: 
Nevada County Consolidated Fire District: Administration Office, 640 Coyote Street, Nevada City; Station 
86, 12337 Banner Lava Cap Rd, Nevada City; Station 88, 14400 Golden Star, Grass Valley; Station 89, 11833 
Tammy Way, Grass Valley; and on our website address at http://www.nccfire.com.  Our e-mail address is 
nccfire@nccfire.com.  

Rules Applying to Public Comments (as provided by CA Government Code Section 54954.) 
A. Members of the public wishing to address the Board upon any subject within the jurisdiction of

the Nevada County Consolidated Fire District may do so upon receiving recognition from the presiding 
officer at the appropriate time.  You may address the Board on any agenda item prior to Board Action.  If 
you wish to address the Board on an item not on the agenda, you may do so during the General Public 
Comment period.  Understand that no action may be taken on an item not on the agenda. 

— Where necessary for the orderly operation of the meeting, the presiding officer may limit 
public comment during the public comment period or public hearing to no more than five 

minutes per individual. 

B. After receiving recognition, please stand and state your name, as all meetings are being taped.
Note that stating your name is a voluntary act and is not required. 

C. Members of the public may submit written comments on any matter that is listed on the agenda
or for general public comment. You may submit written comments on any matter by U.S. Mail addressed 
to 640 Coyote Street, Nevada City, CA 95959 or by e-mail to triciabush@nccfire.com. For comments to be 
read at the meeting and entered into the minutes they must be received no later than 8:00 a.m. on the 
morning of the noticed meeting. 

D. All documents to be presented to the Board of Directors shall be given to the Secretary of the
Board for distribution (original and seven copies) prior to the Call of Order of meeting. 

E. Complaints against any individual District employee cannot be brought up in open meeting
directly.  The District will only consider such a complaint if submitted in writing. 

mailto:nccfire@nccn.net
mailto:triciabush@nccfire.com


 

 

NCCFD MINUTES – Regular BOARD MEETING 

January 19, 2023  

 
 
 
 

640 Coyote Street  
Nevada City, CA 95959  
(530) 265-4431 
FAX 265-4438 

DRAFT 
Nevada County Consolidated Fire District 

 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES January 19, 2023 

Regular Meeting held at 
11329 McCourtney Road, Grass Valley, CA 95949 

REMOTELY VIA ZOOM: PHONE: 1-669-900-6833 
PASSCODE: 01192023 

 
 

 
www.nccfire.com 

nccfire@nccfire.com 

NCCFD DIRECTORS 
Present:  Grueneberg (President), Dorland, Garrett, Hall, Carrington, Nelson, Slade-Troutman 

STAFF: 
Present: Fire Chief Robitaille, Division Chief Sullivan, Fire Marshal Mason, Battalion Chief Smith, Battalion 

Chief Sunde, Administrative Services Long and Fleet & Facilities Supervisor Greene 

STANDING ORDERS: 
President Grueneberg called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm and took roll call, noting all Directors were 
present. President Grueneberg led in the pledge of allegiance.   

*PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
Per CA Government Code 54954.3 

No public comment. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
1. Acceptance of Minutes –December 15, 2022 
2. Fund Balances, Check History Report and Credit Card History Report  
3. County of Nevada Signature Sheet 

 
Director Slade-Troutman motioned to accept the consent calendar. Director Hall seconded. MOTION passed 
unanimously. 

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 
STANDING COMMITTEES 

FINANCE/BUDGET: Hall, Slade-Troutman 
PERSONNEL: Carrington, Nelson 

 
 
AD HOC COMMITTEES 

BOARD POLICY AND PROCEDURES: Grueneberg 
CONSOLIDATION: Grueneberg, Dorland, Carrington 
 

LOCAL AGENCY ASSIGNMENTS 

NEVADA COUNTY FIRE AGENCY (JPA): Garrett 
Finance – None 
Personnel – None 
Board Policy & Procedures – None 
Consolidation – None 
JPA – None 

 
 

1- 1

http://www.nccfire.com/
mailto:nccfire@nccfire.com


 

NCCFD MINUTES – Regular BOARD MEETING 

January 19, 2023  

NEW BUSINESS 

4.  Sierra-Sacramento Valley EMS Recognition Award 
Lieutenant Branden Wilson (NCCFD) and Dane Meredith (Sierra Nevada Ambulance) were recognized for 
their life-saving efforts while off-duty for an individual who suffered a cardiac emergency at a local gym.  
Division Chief Sullivan presented Lt. Wilson with a certificate for NCCFD’s appreciation for his actions. 
Sierra-Sacramento Valley EMS Manager Kristy Harlan presented Lt. Wilson with a life saving pin for their 
gratitude.  
 
5. Discussion and Possible Action, Audit Exit Interview for Fiscal Year Ending 21/22 with Fechter & 

Company 
Administrative Services Long stated this audit was completed for fiscal year ending June 2022. She 
introduced Joann Berry, who has managed the audit for the last three years. Joanne Berry reported the 
audit went well without any significant issues. She reported there were no concerns, all processes and 
policies were adhered to and that the financial position of the district is in good shape. Director Nelson 
motioned to approve the Audit Exit Interview for the fiscal year 21/22. Director Slade-Troutman seconded. 
MOTION passed unanimously following a roll call vote. 
 
6. Discussion and Possible Action, Resolution 23-01, Transfer Funds from 734 to 722 in the amount of   

$542,000.00 
Administrative Services Long reported that this resolution is to transfer the Special Tax funds received into 
the Operating fund. Director Carrington motioned to adopt Resolution 23-01, Transfer of Funds from 734 to 
722 in the amount of $542,000.00 Director Hall seconded. MOTION passed unanimously following a roll call 
vote.  

 
7.  Discussion and Possible Action, Staff Report to Surplus Water Tender 
Fleet and Facilities Supervisor Greene stated the new engine should arrive in the next week and made the 
recommendation to surplus the old water tender (Unit 128).  Director Garrett motioned to accept the staff 
report to surplus the water tender. Director Dorland seconded. MOTION passed unanimously following a 
roll call vote. 
 
8. Discussion and Possible Action, California 1582 Memorandum of Understanding 
Division Chief Sullivan stated we have used Gaetke Medical for the last 10 years for firefighter physicals and 
they do a very thorough job. Division Chief Sullivan indicated the MOU is new this year and highlights what 
is expected in their services. Director Nelson motioned to approve California 1582 Memorandum of 
Understanding. Director Carrington seconded. MOTION passed unanimously following a roll call vote. 
 
9. Discussion and Possible Action, Board and Fire Chief Expectations 
President Grueneberg presented the Expectations of the Board and the Fire Chief. The Board agreed that 
these were the expectations along with the added notation on item #11: “partnership with other agencies” 
instead of “interact with other agencies.”   
 

10. Discussion and Possible Action, Annual Review of Board Committee Assignments: Standing, Ad Hoc 
and Local Agency, with Possible Changes in Assignments 

All Directors agreed to stay with their current assignments. Chief Robitaille was added to JPA. Director 
Slade-Troutman thought it would be beneficial if other Board members were more involved with the 
Finance/Budget and mentioned having all attend the finance committee meetings. Chief Robitaille stated 
the application process for the Oversight Committee is open and that he is hoping to get that started again.  

 

 

   
1- 2



 

NCCFD MINUTES – Regular BOARD MEETING 

January 19, 2023  

 CHIEF’S MONTHLY REPORT  

Chief Robitaille highlighted the recognition of Lt. Branden Wilson (NCCFD) and Dane Meredith (SN Ambulance) 
for their actions off-duty. He advised that he and Division Chief Sullivan interviewed and ranked seven 
firefighters for potential hiring. He wanted to thank the Brennan Family and Firefighter Brennan for 
coordinating Santa Claus visiting Station 84. The Chief also added staff is beginning to review ordering and 
financing options for Engine 84 replacement. 
 
Division Chief Sullivan verbally reviewed his report highlighting that there were 282 calls for service, which 
included 1 structure fire.   
 
Administration attended several meetings this past month including KNCO Talk of the Town, CAUSSSS Meeting, 
Nevada County Fire Chiefs Meeting, Board of Supervisors DSI Presentation and with Higgins Fire. 
 
Fire Marshal Mason advised he met with Clayton Thomas (Penn Valley FD) to discuss the sharing of Fire 
Investigation resources. He attended the monthly OES staff meeting and assisted them with temporary 
employment interviews for Defensible Space Inspectors and to develop the end of year data to report out for 
the DSI program. He attended the Planning Commission Meeting for the cannabis ordinance update. Fire 
Marshal Mason completed all but two school inspections over Christmas Break. He reported they have one 
reserve hired for fire prevention as a fire investigator. Fire Marshal Mason reported the 2022 California Fire 
Code was adopted by the Board of Supervisors and provided an attachment for the adopted amendments 
which pertained to open flame regulations and modular home sprinklers.  
 

*BOARD DISCUSSION 

Board Photos will be taking place on March 6, 2023 at 6:00pm and directors were reminded to wear their polo 
shirts. The Red Light ball is taking place on February 25, 2023 at the Elks Lodge.  

 
*PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS: 
Per CA Government Code 54954.3 
While members of the public are not allowed in Closed Sessions, they do have the right to comment on the Closed 
Session item before the Board goes into Closed Session. And, if the Board will be taking action on the item out of 
Closed Session, then the public also has the right to comment during the Report Out of Closed Session when 
consideration of the action to be taken. Any member of the public who wishes to comment may do so after receiving 
recognition from the Chairman. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

President Grueneberg adjourned the meeting at 7:57 p.m. 
 
Attest: Approved by: 

 
 

              
Tricia Bush Keith Grueneberg 
Board Secretary President of the Board 

1- 3



Nevada County Consolidated Fire District
Fund Recap & Cash Balances
January 2023

722 723 733 734 758 Total
Operating Contingency AB1600 Special Tax Capital

  
Beginning Cash1 1,842,714     1,321,736    123,912     551,257    623,799    1,426,540   

Revenues 113,723         -                 3,689          174            -             55,780         
 

Expenditures (440,775)        -                 -              -            (174,597)   (598,350)     

Other Inc/Expense -                  -                 -            (1,143)          

Other Activity2 1,485             -                 -              -            -             (15,142)        

Ending Cash1 1,517,147     1,321,736    127,601     551,431    449,202    867,685       
  

1 Includes Well Fargo
2 Reconciling items, prior period adjustments

Fund

2-1



 9:28 AM
 02/08/23

 Nevada County Consolidated Fire District
 Operating Fund 722

 January 2023

Jan 23 Jul '22 - Jan 23 Budget % of Budget

Revenues 

4000 · Taxes & Assessments

4010 · Current Secured 2,013,763 3,825,234 53%

4020 · Current Unsecured 417 57,897 54,819 106%

4030 · Prior Unsecured 342 1,192 2,296 52%

4040 · Supplemental Secured 5,036 71,567 47,344 151%

4050 · Supplemental Unsecured 443 3,504 8,598 41%

4060 · Supplemental Prior Unsecured 215 443 388 114%

4110 · Special Assessment 5,964 1,227,749 2,214,078 55%

4150 · Special Tax of 2012 8,973 9,415 1,001,388 1%

4151 · Special Tax 2012 (transfer in) 55,000

4230 · State Homeowners 12,368 24,888 50%

4240 · State Public Safety Prop 172 43,503 317,566 388,019 82%

4290 · Other 721

Total 4000 · Taxes & Assessments 64,893 3,771,185 7,567,052 50%

4500 · Reimbursements

4510 · Strike Team 125,794 637,018 75,000 285%

4522 · Strike Team Cost Offset (80,600) (423,105)

4540 · Vehicle Repair 1,815 5,000 36%

4550 · Cost Recovery 819 15,477 3,000

4690 · Other Reimbursements 17,461 23,480 74%

Total 4500 · Reimbursements 46,013 248,666 106,480 234%

4800 · Other Revenue

4810 · Inspections & Permits 1,152 2,766 7,500 37%

4812 · Plan Reviews 1,146 7,225 12,000 60%

4820 · Interest & Finance Charges 19 12,803 22,000 58%

4830 · Rentals 500 1,750 3,240 54%

4840 · Other Current Services 2,217 3,000 74%

Total 4800 · Other Revenue 2,817 26,761 47,740 56%

Total Revenues 113,723 4,046,612 7,721,272 52%

Fiscal Year Complete: 58%. Payroll Complete: 58%. 2-2



 9:28 AM
 02/08/23

 Nevada County Consolidated Fire District
 Operating Fund 722

 January 2023

Jan 23 Jul '22 - Jan 23 Budget % of Budget

Expense

5000 · Wages & Benefits

5100 · Wages

5111 · Chief / Dep. & Div. Chief (2.5) 23,660 223,750 322,361 69%

5113 · Battalion Chief (3) 27,053 208,930 350,039 60%

5114 · Fire Marshal / DFM (2) 10,267 81,989 248,147 33%

5121 · Captains (9) 73,237 560,390 875,804 64%

5122 · Lieutenants (6) 35,504 270,623 467,539 58%

5123 · Firefighter (12) 47,014 381,786 736,903 52%

5131 · Supplemental / Seasonal FF 122,987 157,277 78%

5132 · PCF / Reserve FF 4,020 4,800 84%

5141 · Clerical (3) 14,215 107,654 203,691 53%

5145 · Fire Mechanic (1.5) 10,202 86,131 149,089 58%

5151 · Overtime 35,150 317,954 501,048 63%

5153 · Additional Overtime Staffing 3,630 13,777 18,541 74%

5155 · EPSL Overtime 10 38,110

5161 · Strike Team 5,366 292,135

5165 · Strike Team Backfill 99,912

5167 · Strike Team Revenue Offset (79,448) (417,058)

5171 · Holiday Stipend 23,004 68,549 80,199 85%

5173 · Vacation / CTO Buy Back 83,666 115,648 72%

5185 · Directors 225 2,175 4,500 48%

Total 5100 · Wages 229,089 2,547,480 4,235,586 60%

5500 · Payroll Taxes

5511 · Medicare Employer Tax 4,197 39,386 61,355 64%

5512 · Soc Security Employer Tax 45 571 887 64%

5521 · SUI Employer Tax 3,762 5,088 5,637 90%

5526 · Strike Team Revenue Offset (1,152) (6,047)

Total 5500 · Payroll Taxes 6,852 38,998 67,879 57%

5700 · Benefits

5711 · Pension 49,289 886,848 1,258,282 70%

5731 · Health Insurance 70,450 389,626 772,464 50%

5735 · Life Insurance 968 5,737 14,400 40%

5751 · Workers Comp Insurance 204,884 228,707 90%

Total 5700 · Benefits 120,707 1,487,095 2,273,853 65%

Total 5000 · Wages & Benefits 356,648 4,073,573 6,577,318 62%

Fiscal Year Complete: 58%. Payroll Complete: 58%. 2-3



 9:28 AM
 02/08/23

 Nevada County Consolidated Fire District
 Operating Fund 722

 January 2023

Jan 23 Jul '22 - Jan 23 Budget % of Budget

6000 · Personnel Related

6010 · Clothing / PPE

6011 · Uniforms 423 14,212 35,080 41%

6021 · Personal Protective Equip 4,483 27,938 51,500 54%

6031 · Safety & PPE (per MOU) 14,552 33,832 32,130 105%

Total 6010 · Clothing / PPE 19,458 75,982 118,710 64%

6100 · Food / Meals

6111 · Meals - Administration 427 593 1,300 46%

6113 · Meals - Fire 166 1,000 17%

6114 · Meals - Interns 15,411

Total 6100 · Food / Meals 427 759 17,711 4%

6200 · Training / Fitness

6211 · Wellness Program 105 1,223 31,660 4%

6213 · Fitness Program 4,145 5,910 70%

6221 · Tuition - Safety Personnel 9,911 13,769 30,500 45%

6232 · Travel Expense 679 5,136 10,000 51%

6241 · Training Materials 2,500

6246 · Public Safety Training Center 1,000

6261 · Licenses & Certificates 11 619 2,500 25%

6271 · Training - Administration 610 4,923 8,500 58%

Total 6200 · Training / Fitness 11,316 29,815 92,570 32%

Total 6000 · Personnel Related 31,201 106,556 228,991 47%

6500 · Facility & Equipment Related

6510 · Communications

6511 · Telephones 1,521 10,805 19,260 56%

6521 · Mobile Phones 685 3,272 15,500 21%

Total 6510 · Communications 2,206 14,077 34,760 40%

6550 · Station
6551 · Supplies & Services - Stations 1,581 10,385 24,760 42%

Total 6550 · Station 1,581 10,385 24,760 42%

6610 · Insurance

6611 · Liability 49,095 49,176 100%

Combined 6611 (Liability) and 6621 (Property). 6 month premium.

Total 6610 · Insurance 49,095 49,176 100%

6650 · Maintenance
6681 · Facility Maint & Improvements 8,175 95,540 189,000 51%

Total 6650 · Maintenance 8,175 95,540 189,000 51%

6700 · Medical Supplies
6716 · EMS Supplies 2,091 12,616 18,500 68%

Total 6700 · Medical Supplies 2,091 12,616 18,500 68%

6750 · Apparatus Equipment

6751 · Hose 299 22,000 1%

6756 · Ladders 1,553

6761 · Suppression Equip/Small Tools 425 2,469 7,500 33%

Fiscal Year Complete: 58%. Payroll Complete: 58%. 2-4



 9:28 AM
 02/08/23

 Nevada County Consolidated Fire District
 Operating Fund 722

 January 2023

Jan 23 Jul '22 - Jan 23 Budget % of Budget

6766 · Power Tools & Equipment 396 1,856 7,902 23%

6771 · Pump Testing 4,337

6776 · Mobile Communications 669 3,555 7,685 46%

6781 · Technical Rescue Equip 4,245 13,000 33%

6786 · SCBA Repair & Maintenace 2,505 10,500 24%

6796 · Drone 1,000 1,412 71%

6798 · Utility Terrain Vehicle 461 1,500 31%

Total 6750 · Apparatus Equipment 1,490 16,390 77,389 21%

6800 · Utilities

6811 · Alarm 330 1,183 1,500 79%

6821 · Electricity / Gas 5,678 37,142 56,170 66%

6831 · Propane 3,379 6,658 13,924 48%

6841 · Trash 249 2,058 3,600 57%

6851 · Water / Sewer 647 6,564 11,487 57%

Total 6800 · Utilities 10,283 53,605 86,681 62%

6900 · Capital Expenditures

6931 · Vehicles 102

6941 · Admin Office Equipm & Computers 554 8,451 27,125 31%

Total 6900 · Capital Expenditures 554 8,553 27,125 32%

Total 6500 · Facility & Equipment Related 26,380 260,261 507,391 51%

7000 · Vehicle Related

7001 · Insurance 8,418 10,085 83%

6 month premium

7010 · Maintenance

7011 · Accessories 615 9,017

7016 · Batteries 218 913

7021 · Body 3,557

7026 · Brakes 3,745

7031 · Drive Train 276 24,399

7036 · Pumps 4,152

7041 · Tires 5,617

7046 · Tools & Shop Related 214 9,369

7048 · All Categories for Budget 111,000

7049 · Outside Agency Vehicle Maint (151)

Total 7010 · Maintenance 1,323 60,618 111,000 55%

7050 · Fuel
7051 · Fuel 5,985 51,763 93,447 55%

Total 7050 · Fuel 5,985 51,763 93,447 55%

Total 7000 · Vehicle Related 7,308 120,799 214,532 56%

7500 · General & Admin Related

7501 · Office Expense

7502 · Administration 389 2,102 4,500 47%

7506 · Board 54 160 1,000 16%

7508 · Computer & Software Expense 10,760 49,142 86,233 57%

Fiscal Year Complete: 58%. Payroll Complete: 58%. 2-5



 9:28 AM
 02/08/23

 Nevada County Consolidated Fire District
 Operating Fund 722

 January 2023

Jan 23 Jul '22 - Jan 23 Budget % of Budget

7509 · Copier Expense 59 565 1,200 47%

7511 · Memberships 1,019 15,124 16,190 93%

7516 · Mileage Reimbursements 44 100 44%

7521 · Postage & Delivery 50 496 1,100 45%

7531 · Other 234

7501 · Office Expense - Other 1 14

Total 7501 · Office Expense 12,332 67,881 110,323 62%

7550 · Professional Services

7551 · Accounting 2,175 14,427 12,880 112%

7556 · Computer & IT Support 979 6,885 14,980 46%

7561 · Consultants 10,069 10,000 101%

7563 · Hiring Expense 212 12,322 11,380 108%

7566 · Legal Expense 23,237 46,675 50%

7571 · Medical Director 1,650 4,950 6,600 75%

Total 7550 · Professional Services 5,016 71,890 102,515 70%

7590 · Publications

7591 · Legal Notices 600

7596 · Marketing / Advertising 500

Total 7590 · Publications 1,100

7600 · Special District

7611 · Elections 32,262 30,000 108%

7621 · LAFCo 5,687 6,663 85%

7631 · Nevada County Fees 82,050 89,228 92%

Total 7600 · Special District 119,999 125,891 95%

7650 · Prevention

7651 · Code Purchases 434 1,816 1,800 101%

7653 · Investigation Supplies 2,367 4,300 55%

7657 · Inspection Supplies 1,500

7661 · Prof Svcs / Plan Checks 2,500

7663 · Public Education Supplies 3,100

7665 · Subscriptions / Memberships 534 1,400 38%

7667 · Training 1,456 2,629 6,000 44%

7669 · Other Prevention / Law Enforce 1,626 1,500 108%

Total 7650 · Prevention 1,890 8,972 22,100 41%

7800 · JPA

7831 · Dispatch Charges 9,619 130,000 7%

7841 · Dues / Administration 6,431 12,862 50%

Total 7800 · JPA 16,050 142,862 11%

Total 7500 · General & Admin Related 19,238 284,792 504,791 56%

8500 · Strike Team Non Labor Expenses 12,993

8510 · Reimbursables & Other
8519 · Other Expense 133

Total 8510 · Reimbursables & Other 133

Total Expense 440,775 4,859,107 8,033,023 60%

Fiscal Year Complete: 58%. Payroll Complete: 58%. 2-6



 9:28 AM
 02/08/23

 Nevada County Consolidated Fire District
 Operating Fund 722

 January 2023

Jan 23 Jul '22 - Jan 23 Budget % of Budget

Fund Over/<Under> (327,052) (812,495) (311,751)

Other Income

9001 · Grant Revenue

9001.08 · RFC 7GF21089 7,876

9001 · Grant Revenue - Other 25,824

Total 9001 · Grant Revenue 33,700

Total Other Income 33,700

Other Expense

9101 · Grant Expense

9101.01 · AFG EMW-2019-FG-03486 Radio 16,954

9101.09 · CA Fire Foundation Comm Veg Red 6,561

Total 9101 · Grant Expense 23,515

Total Other Expense 23,515

Net Other 10,185
Net Fund Activity (327,052) (802,310) (311,751)

Fiscal Year Complete: 58%. Payroll Complete: 58%. 2-7



 10:01 AM
 02/08/23

 Nevada County Consolidated Fire District
 AB 1600 Mitigation Fund 733

 January 2023

Jan 23 Jul '22 - Jan 23 Budget % of Budget

Revenues

4000 · Taxes & Assessments
4160 · AB 1600 Mitigation Fees 3,689 80,179 100,412 80%

Total 4000 · Taxes & Assessments 3,689 80,179 100,412 80%

4800 · Other Revenue
4820 · Interest & Finance Charges 639 1,200 53%

Total 4800 · Other Revenue 639 1,200 53%

Total Revenues 3,689 80,818 101,612 80%

Expense

6500 · Facility & Equipment Related

6900 · Capital Expenditures
6921 · Apparatus & Equipment 51,803 51,803 100%

Total 6900 · Capital Expenditures 51,803 51,803 100%

Total 6500 · Facility & Equipment Related 51,803 51,803 100%

7500 · General & Admin Related

7550 · Professional Services
7561 · Consultants 23,000

Total 7550 · Professional Services 23,000

Total 7500 · General & Admin Related 23,000

Total Expense 51,803 74,803

Fund Over/<Under> 3,689 29,015 26,809
Net Fund Activity 3,689 29,015 26,809

2-8



 9:46 AM
 02/09/23

 Nevada County Consolidated Fire District
 Special Tax Fund 734

 January 2023

Jan 23 Jul '22 - Jan 23 Budget % of Budget

Revenues

4000 · Taxes & Assessments
4150 · Special Tax of 2012 174 556,053 1,010,219 55%

Total 4000 · Taxes & Assessments 174 556,053 1,010,219 55%

4800 · Other Revenue
4820 · Interest & Finance Charges 516 1,500 34%

Total 4800 · Other Revenue 516 1,500 34%

Total Revenues 174 556,569 1,011,719 55%

Expense

7500 · General & Admin Related

7550 · Professional Services
7561 · Consultants 8,177

Total 7550 · Professional Services 8,177

7600 · Special District
7631 · Nevada County Fees 10,331

Total 7600 · Special District 10,331

Total 7500 · General & Admin Related 8,177 10,331 79%

Total Expense 8,177 10,331 79%

Fund Over/<Under> 174 548,392 1,001,388 55%

Other Expense

8700 · Transfers Out
8722 · Transfer to 722 55,000

Total 8700 · Transfers Out 55,000

Total Other Expense 55,000

Net Other (55,000)
Net Fund Activity 174 493,392 1,001,388 49%

2-9



 9:56 AM
 02/09/23

 Nevada County Consolidated Fire District
 Capital Fund 758

 January 2023

Jan 23 Jul '22 - Jan 23 YTD Budget % of Budget

Revenues

4800 · Other Revenue

4820 · Interest & Finance Charges 5,607 100%

4850 · Sale Surplus Equipment 60,000

Total 4800 · Other Revenue 5,607 60,000 9%

Total Revenues 5,607 60,000 9%

Expense

6500 · Facility & Equipment Related

6510 · Communications
6511 · Telephones 190

Total 6510 · Communications 190

6650 · Maintenance
6681 · Facility Maint & Improvements 116,388

Total 6650 · Maintenance 116,388

6900 · Capital Expenditures

6911 · Stations 8,000

6921 · Apparatus & Equipment 173,940 270,714 151,249 179%

6931 · Vehicles 657 46,398 65,000 71%

Total 6900 · Capital Expenditures 174,597 317,112 224,249 141%

Total 6500 · Facility & Equipment Related 174,597 433,690 224,249

7500 · General & Admin Related

7550 · Professional Services
7561 · Consultants 6,000

Total 7550 · Professional Services 6,000

Total 7500 · General & Admin Related 6,000

Total Expense 174,597 433,690 230,249

Fund Over/<Under> (174,597) (428,083) (170,249)
Net Fund Activity (174,597) (428,083) (170,249)

2-10



 9:31 AM
 02/07/23
 Cash Basis

 Nevada County Consolidated Fire District
 Check History Report

 January 2023
Date Num Name Paid Amount

Fund 722

01/03/2023 254814 AFLAC 1,145.64

01/03/2023 254764 BLUE SHIELD OF CALIFORNIA 37,760.89

01/03/2023 966907 FDAC Employee Benefits Authority 1,540.65

01/03/2023 966899 KAISER FOUNDATION HEALTH PLAN 15,924.65

01/03/2023 966863 SPECIAL DIST RISK MGMT AUTH. 4,855.43

01/03/2023 254826 STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY 928.00

01/03/2023 254791 ADVANTAGE GEAR, INC. 68.59

01/03/2023 966878 AIRGAS, NCN 600.28

01/03/2023 254781 EVERGUARD SYSTEMS 165.00

01/03/2023 254815 FECHTER & COMPANY, CPA's 1,175.00

01/03/2023 254769 HBE RENTALS 35.45

01/03/2023 966874 HILLS FLAT LUMBER COMPANY 131.62

01/03/2023 254776 LIFE ASSIST INC. 275.15

01/03/2023 966876 MISSION LINEN SUPPLY, INC. 126.48

01/03/2023 966905 MOTOR ELECTRIC SERVICE CO. 236.41

01/03/2023 254771 NETWORK DESIGN ASSOCIATES 352.75

01/03/2023 254796 SPAR TREE FORESTRY 2,400.00

01/03/2023 966887 WALKER'S OFFICE SUPPLY 38.41

01/09/2023 254932 ADVANTAGE GEAR, INC. 54.32

01/09/2023 254901 B&C ACE HOME & GARDEN CENTER 70.05

01/09/2023 967460 Daniel L Goldsmith 1,650.00

01/09/2023 967431 HILLS FLAT LUMBER COMPANY 53.74

01/09/2023 967444 IMMIX TECHNOLOGY INC 1,902.13

01/09/2023 967432 MISSION LINEN SUPPLY, INC. 58.48

01/09/2023 254909 NETWORK DESIGN ASSOCIATES 405.00

01/09/2023 967433 PURCHASE POWER 50.00

01/09/2023 254949 Synapse Technologies Inc. 7,150.00

01/12/2023 254966 Peardale Chicago Park Fire District 820.00

01/12/2023 254967 HSA BANK, DIV. OF WEBSTER BANK 18,968.72

01/12/2023 254968 CalPERS 457 Plan (Def. Comp) 1,107.69

01/12/2023 967495 NCCFD - EFTPS (Fed & State Taxes) 32,078.35

01/12/2023 967505 NEVADA COUNTY PROF FF ASSN 1,085.00

01/12/2023 967510 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTION 6,252.90

01/12/2023 912034 CalPERS (Retirement) 40,924.20

01/13/2023 GJE 681 Net Pay Pay Period Ending 1/7/23 122,242.44

01/17/2023 255034 AT&T CALNET 3 426.46

01/17/2023 255035 CalCARD (US BANK) 16,097.47

01/17/2023 255040 B&C ACE HOME & GARDEN CENTER 162.68

01/17/2023 967644 BANNER COMMUNICATIONS 669.00

01/17/2023 255127 FECHTER & COMPANY, CPA's 1,000.00

01/17/2023 255070 GRASS VALLEY FIRE DEPARTMENT 921.71

01/17/2023 967630 HUNT & SONS, INC. 3,935.76

01/17/2023 255058 LIFE ASSIST INC. 1,112.18

01/17/2023 967600 MCELHANNON, JARED 1,199.41

2-11



 9:31 AM
 02/07/23
 Cash Basis

 Nevada County Consolidated Fire District
 Check History Report

 January 2023
Date Num Name Paid Amount

01/17/2023 255124 MEM ELECTRICAL INC 1,300.00

01/17/2023 967599 NCCFD - EFTPS (Fed & State Taxes) 1.78

01/17/2023 255080 NFPA 434.09

01/17/2023 255059 NID 84.39

01/17/2023 967658 PLATT (Rexel) 128.34

01/17/2023 255151 RIEBES AUTO PARTS 703.41

01/17/2023 967645 ROBINSON ENTERPRISES, INC. 808.68

01/17/2023 967657 SOLON FIRE CONTROL 119.36

01/17/2023 967624 WALKER'S OFFICE SUPPLY 134.32

01/17/2023 255046 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF NEV. CO. 249.05

01/23/2023 967821 Code 3 Rescue 3,900.00

01/23/2023 967765 ECONOMY PEST CONTROL 523.00

01/23/2023 255256 L.N. CURTIS & SONS 4,483.47

01/23/2023 255266 MESCHER DOOR COMPANY 2,667.00

01/23/2023 967767 MISSION LINEN SUPPLY, INC. 126.48

01/23/2023 255264 NETWORK DESIGN ASSOCIATES 405.00

01/23/2023 967761 NEVADA CITY, CITY OF 460.70

01/23/2023 255271 NID 55.58

01/23/2023 967781 REED'S LOCKSMITHING 8.68

01/23/2023 967773 RIVERVIEW INTERNATIONAL TRUCKS 231.82

01/23/2023 255279 SUBURBAN PROPANE 1,670.56

01/23/2023 255318 THE UPS STORE #5417/TAJI INC. 212.00

01/23/2023 255296 TOTAL ADMIN SVCS (TASC) 310.44

01/23/2023 967776 WALKER'S OFFICE SUPPLY 46.89

01/23/2023 255272 NID 46.46

01/23/2023 255278 SUBURBAN PROPANE 1,673.15

01/26/2023 255327 CalPERS 457 Plan (Def. Comp) 1,107.69

01/26/2023 967855 NCCFD - EFTPS (Fed & State Taxes) 25,474.34

01/26/2023 967870 NEVADA COUNTY PROF FF ASSN 1,085.00

01/26/2023 967876 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTION 6,291.04

01/26/2023 912061 CalPERS (Retirement) 36,121.72

01/27/2023 GJE 682 Net Pay Pay Period Ending 1/21/23 109,485.56

01/30/2023 255595 AT&T CALNET 3 24.78

01/30/2023 255609 B&C ACE HOME & GARDEN CENTER 58.57

01/30/2023 968009 BUCKMASTER OFFICE SOLUTIONS 59.19

01/30/2023 255610 CALIFORNIA FIRE CHIEFS ASSN. 960.00

01/30/2023 968089 Code 3 Rescue 1,950.00

01/30/2023 968016 ECONOMY PEST CONTROL 331.00

01/30/2023 255660 EVERGUARD SYSTEMS 165.00

01/30/2023 968023 HILLS FLAT LUMBER COMPANY 34.16

01/30/2023 255648 HOUSE OF PRINT AND COPY 70.53

01/30/2023 255669 LIGHTHOUSE UNIFORM CO. 327.40

01/30/2023 968018 MCELHANNON, JARED 279.59

01/30/2023 255656 MEM ELECTRICAL INC 616.00

01/30/2023 968053 ROBINSON ENTERPRISES, INC. 1,024.74

2-12



 9:31 AM
 02/07/23
 Cash Basis

 Nevada County Consolidated Fire District
 Check History Report

 January 2023
Date Num Name Paid Amount

01/30/2023 255654 SCOTT'S PPE RECON, INC. 136.90

01/30/2023 255620 YUBA DOCS 105.00

534,650.95

Fund 758

01/09/2023 967449 MOTOR ELECTRIC SERVICE CO. 54.20

01/17/2023 255090 AUBURN FORD 185.00

01/17/2023 255151 RIEBES AUTO PARTS 417.85

01/23/2023 255250 Rosenbauer South Dakota, LLC 107,075.87

01/30/2023 255594 PNC EQUIPMENT FINANCE 66,864.32

174,597.24

2-13



 9:54 AM
 02/07/23
 Cash Basis

 Nevada County Consolidated Fire District
 Credit Card History Report

 January, 2023
Num Name Paid Amount

Fund 722

BENTON Hazardous Materials Institute 413.56

DAVISON AMAZON- Station Supplies (St.84/BC Office) 91.88

DAVISON PK Safety 305.30

DAVISON AMAZON- Station Supplies (St.84) 206.35

FIN MGR STREAMLINE 200.00

FIN MGR AT&T Long Distance 39.88

FIN MGR Cloudflare 5.00

FIN MGR COMCAST 386.48

FIN MGR PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC CO. 5,677.68

FIN MGR AT&T (Carol Stream) 43.49

FIN MGR COMCAST 135.05

FIN MGR MICROSOFT OFFICE 1,285.00

FIN MGR SMARTER BROADBAND 34.05

FIN MGR OPTIMUM (SUDDENLINK) 26.32

FIN MGR OPTIMUM (SUDDENLINK) 159.45

FIN MGR COMCAST 145.73

FIN MGR VERIZON WIRELESS 1,238.80

GREENE CFMA 780.00

GREENE KIMBALL MIDWEST 54.30

GREENE DISH NETWORK 98.81

GREENE SNAP-ON INDUSTRIAL 23.81

JOHNSEN SPD SAW SHOP 75.28

LONG AMAZON- Admin Supplies 15.52

LONG AMAZON- Computer/Software Expense (Admin) 33.53

LONG AMAZON- Admin Supplies 12.89

LONG CALIFORNIA SPECIAL DISTR. ASSN 200.00

LONG Northridge of Nevada City 177.61

LONG AMAZON- Vehicle Accessories (E84) 53.70

LONG AMAZON- Station Supplies (St.88) 95.66

LONG AMAZON- Vehicle Accessories (E84) 90.35

LONG AMAZON- Memberships (annual Prime) 192.43

LONG AMAZON- Station Supplies (St.92) 70.95

LONG AMAZON- Admin Supplies 32.66

LONG AMAZON- Admin Supplies 75.25

LONG AMAZON- Admin Supplies 24.71

MARGHERITA CFMA 830.00

MASON CCAI 495.00

MASON Vang Comp 450.00

MCELHANNON PacForest Supply 868.71

NUNNINK AMAZON- Station Supplies (St.84) 74.13

NUNNINK AMAZON- Station Supplies (St.84) 122.99

NUNNINK AMAZON- Power Tools/Equip. (E84) 320.36

NUNNINK AMAZON- Station Supplies, Facility Mtc. (St.84) 235.37

NUNNINK AMAZON- Station Supplies (St.84) CREDIT -48.27

2-14



 9:54 AM
 02/07/23
 Cash Basis

 Nevada County Consolidated Fire District
 Credit Card History Report

 January, 2023
Num Name Paid Amount

SERNA SP Coastal Fire Training 86.92

SERNA SPD MARKET 18.98

SULLIVAN Beach Hut Deli 240.00

SULLIVAN RESCUE TRAINING INSTITUTE 11.00

SULLIVAN RESCUE TRAINING INSTITUTE 5.50

SUNDE Tofanelli's Bistro 9.75

TELLAM CCAI 495.00

TELLAM Embassy Suites (San Luis Obispo) 15.99

TREVETHICK AMAZON- Facility Mtc (St.86) 17.19

TREVETHICK AMAZON- Memberships (to be refunded) 16.11

WEATHERS SPD MARKET 375.10

WEATHERS Hazardous Materials Institute 413.56

WILSON Hazardous Materials Institute 413.56

17,968.43
Total Fund 722: 17,968.43

2-15



 

T 951.587.3500  ▪  800.755.6864  |  F 951.587.3510  ▪  888.326.6864  |  27368 Via Industria, Suite 200, Temecula, CA 92590  |  www.willdan.com 

 

May 11, 2022 

Ms. Nicole Long 
Administrative Services 
Nevada County Consolidated Fire District 
640 Coyote Street 
Nevada City, California 95959 

Re: Engagement Letter to Provide Annual Administration Services to Nevada County Consolidated  
Fire District 

Dear Ms. Long: 

Willdan Financial Services (“Willdan”) is pleased to submit the following scope of services and fee to the Nevada County 
Consolidated Fire District to provide annual administration services specific to the existing Fire Suppression Benefit 
Assessment District and Special Tax for Fire Suppression, Protection and Emergency Medical Response Services. Our 
team is comprised of leading experts in the field, we utilize the most advanced special district administration software, 
and our depth of resources and customer service are unmatched in the industry at a competitive fee. 

Scope of Services 
Outlined below is the scope of services that Willdan will follow to properly administer Nevada County Consolidated 
Fire District’s Fire Suppression Benefit Assessment District and Special Tax.  

1. Schedule an annual kick-off conference call with Fire District staff to review administrative policies and procedures. 

Identify and discuss possible changes to the special tax and/or assessment for the upcoming fiscal year, including 

budget issues, modification or expansion of fire services, as well as regulatory changes that may impact the 

charge(s).   

2. Prepare an annual levy timeline identifying key dates and timeframes for pertinent tasks throughout the levy 

process. This timeline will be reviewed and discussed with Fire District staff. As needed, the timeline will also be 

adjusted to address the Fire District’s scheduling requirements or proposed changes. 

3. Develop, update and maintain a parcel levy database by using parcel information from the County secured roll, 

parcel change database and various other sources. As new data becomes available, update the database and 

enhance the data through parcel research using current secured roll information, County Assessor maps, various 

third-party resources, and specific information provided by the Fire District (e.g., up-to-date map approval status, 

building permits, or certificate of occupancy data). Updates to the database will include those necessitated by the 

addition and/or removal of parcels, land subdivisions and merges, land use code, ownership and mailing address 

changes, assessed values and adjusted benefit unit information. 

4. This database will then become the source for the calculation of the annual assessments/special taxes. Based upon 

their assigned benefit, our MuniMagic+ software will be used to calculate the annual charge for the parcels within 

the Fire District’s service area. This software is capable of handling complex assessment methodologies and special 

tax formulas, calculating the annual assessments/taxes, and producing files in the required format for submittal to 

the County Auditor/Controller’s Office. The same data can then be used to reproduce databases of assessed 

parcels in hardcopy, CD-ROM, or other electronic formats. 

5. Provide special tax and assessment amounts for each parcel by Assessor’s Parcel Number to the County 

Auditor/Controller’s Office in the media, format, and configuration required by the County for placement on the 

annual property tax roll. 

3-1



Ms. Nicole Long, Nevada County Consolidated Fire District 
Engagement Letter to Provide Annual Administration Services 
May 11, 2022 
Page 2 
 
 

 
 

6. Provide resolutions ordering the levy, collection of assessments/taxes, and any other necessary information to the 

County Auditor/Controller’s Office. 

7. Research the exceptions upon receipt of a parcel exceptions list from the County; and update parcel number 

changes, as well as report the revised parcels and updated levy amounts to the County. As necessary, Willdan will 

prepare for Fire District staff additional County required correspondences relating to the submittal, correction, or 

removal of special taxes/assessments to the County tax roll. Willdan will manually invoice levy installments that 

cannot be collected on the County property tax roll on behalf of the Fire District.  

8. Provide the Fire District with a levy summary report comparing budget amounts to the actual applied levy. This levy 

summary will include a description of the reasons for any significant variances between the amounts budgeted, and 

the amounts actually applied to the County tax roll. 

9. Act as primary contact (at the discretion of the Fire District) to answer property owner questions regarding the 

charge. Willdan provides the County our toll-free telephone number for inclusion on the tax bills for property owners 

to call with questions. 

Client Responsibilities 
Willdan will rely on obtaining the following information from the Fire District: 

▪ As required by law, the Fire District is responsible for publishing the public hearing notices in the local newspaper, 
as well as the posting of public hearings notices. 

▪ Annual budget information for the Assessment District, including estimated fund balances. 

▪ Changes, modifications, or updates to the improvements described in the previous year’s Engineer’s Report. If 
available, the list of improvements should include detailed plans and specifications. 

▪ Certified copies of the resolution(s) or other documentation required by the County for submittal of the annual levy. 

▪ Updated assessment/boundary diagrams, as needed. 

▪ Updates, if necessary, of pertinent development information. 

If needed, the Fire District will also assist Willdan in obtaining pertinent development information.  

The Fire District acknowledges that Willdan shall be relying upon the accuracy and validity of the information 
provided by the Fire District or their designees and that Willdan shall not be liable for any inaccuracies contained 
therein. 

Schedule 
The expected due dates for Fiscal Year 2022/23 levy submittal (subject to confirmation) and documentation per the 
County are identified below:  

Annual Administration Schedule 

Date Task Description 

May 2023 Project kick-off and planning meeting 

May/June 2023 
Parcel research and create levy database for the 
current year, including preliminary database checks, 
land use, and parcel changes 

June 2023 Resolution submittals 

July 2023 Verify parcel databases with County Assessor’s Data 

July 2023 Submit levy files to County Auditor/Controller 

August 2023 Corrections 

3-2



Ms. Nicole Long, Nevada County Consolidated Fire District 
Engagement Letter to Provide Annual Administration Services 
May 11, 2022 
Page 3 
 
 

 
 

Fee for Services 
The following fees reflect application of the work plan identified in the Scope of Services. The fees are based on 
the time estimated that will be spent on average each year to provide the requested services. All costs associated 
with annual administration are fully recoverable either through the assessment levy or through payment by requestor 
for special services.  

Willdan proposes a fixed fee of $7,500 for a one (1) year agreement; plus, an additional two one-year options to renew 
at the same fee, with no CPI inflator. 

Annual Administration Services 

 FY 22/23 
Optional  
FY 23/24 

Optional  
FY 24/25 

Fire Suppression Benefit Assessment District 2004-1 $ 3,750 $ 3,750 $ 3,750 

Special Tax (Suppression, Protection & EMS) $ 3,750 $ 3,750 $ 3,750 

Annual Administration Fee $ 7,500 $ 7,500 $ 7,500 

 

Billing and Payment 
Willdan will invoice the Fire District upon percentage of project completion. 

Other Fees 
Invoices/Handbills 

Upon the District’s request and approval, Willdan can prepare and mail invoices (handbills) to property owners 
whose proposed annual assessment/tax for their parcel could not be applied to the County tax roll. This is an 
optional service, and the cost associated with this service is not included in the annual fee; but may be provided at 
our then-current hourly consulting rates (see “Additional Services” below), plus expenses. 

Reimbursable Expenses 
Willdan will be reimbursed for out-of-pocket expenses. Examples of reimbursable expenses include, but are not 
limited to: 

▪ Postage;  

▪ Travel expenses;  

▪ Mileage (current prevailing rate);  

▪ Maps; 

▪ Electronic data provided from the county and/or 
other applicable resources;  

▪ Construction cost periodicals; and  

▪ Copying (currently 6¢ per copy). 

 

The Fire District shall reimburse Willdan for any costs Willdan incurs, including without limitation, copying costs, 
digitizing costs, travel expenses, employee time and attorneys' fees, to respond to the legal process of any 
governmental agency relating to the District or relating to the project. Reimbursement shall be at Willdan's hourly 
rates in effect at the time of such response. 

3-3



Ms. Nicole Long, Nevada County Consolidated Fire District 
Engagement Letter to Provide Annual Administration Services 
May 11, 2022 
Page 4 
 
 

 
 

Additional Services 
Additional authorized services will be billed at Willdan’s then current hourly consulting rates. Our current hourly rates 

are outlined in the table below.  

 

Willdan Financial Services 

Position Hourly Rate 

Group Director $ 210 

Principal Consultant / Assistant Director  200 

Senior Project Manager  165 

Project Manager / Program Director  145 

Senior Project Analyst  130 

Senior Analyst  120 

Analyst  100 

Analyst Assistant  75 

Property Owner Services Representative  55 

Support Staff  50 

 

Authorization 
If the terms of this engagement are acceptable, please sign where indicated and email this letter back to our contracts 
supervisor:  

 Joanie Reynolds  
 Willdan Financial Services 
 27368 Via Industria, Suite 200 
 Temecula, California  92590 
 Ph. (800) 755-6864; fax (951) 587-3510 
 E-mail: jreynolds@willdan.com  

Willdan appreciates this opportunity to continue to assist the Nevad County Consolidated District with the annual 
administration of their special taxes and assessments. If you have any questions, please contact me at  
(951) 587-3575 or via email at MMedve@willdan.com. We look forward to hearing from you. 

Sincerely, 

WILLDAN FINANCIAL SERVICES 

 

Gladys Medina 
Group Director - Vice President 
District Administration Services 
 

3-4

mailto:jreynolds@willdan.com
mailto:MMedve@willdan.com


Ms. Nicole Long, Nevada County Consolidated Fire District 
Engagement Letter to Provide Annual Administration Services 
May 11, 2022 
Page 5 
 
 

 
 

Willdan Financial Services 

          May 11, 2022     

Gladys Medina, Vice President and Group Director   Date 

Nevada County Consolidated Fire District 

              

 Signature       Date 

        

 Print Name 

3-5



 

Willdan Financial Services Page A-1 Nevada County Consolidated Fire District 

ATTACHMENT 1 TO LETTER AGREEMENT 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

The Letter Agreement between the Nevada County Consolidated Fire District (“Client”) and Willdan Financial 
Services (“WFS”) is subject to these Terms and Conditions (collectively, this “Agreement”). 

1. Additional Services.  Additional services shall be performed by WFS only upon Client’s request 
evidenced by a written addendum executed by both parties. 

2. Compensation.  WFS shall submit monthly statements for services.  Payments shall be due and 
payable within 30 days of invoice and if not timely paid shall bear interest at the rate of 1.5% per month. 

3. Termination.  Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time upon 30 days’ written notice.  In 
the event of early termination, WFS shall be paid for services performed prior to the effective date of termination. 

4. Data Provided by Client.  WFS shall rely upon data provided by Client without independent verification 
of accuracy.  WFS shall not be responsible for any errors resulting from its use of inaccurate data provided by 
Client. 

5. Indemnification.  Each Party shall indemnify the other from claims resulting from their respective 
negligence or other wrongful conduct or the negligence or other wrongful conduct of their respective officers, 
agents or employees. 

6. Insurance.  WFS shall maintain the following insurance: 

a. Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance as prescribed by applicable law. 

b. Commercial General Liability Insurance, with limits not be less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and 
general aggregate. 

c. Commercial Automobile Liability with limits not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence.   

d. Professional Liability with limits not be less than $1,000,000 per claim and annual aggregate. 

e. All policies except Professional Liability and Workers Compensation shall include Client as an 
additional insured and be primary with respect to any insurance carried by WFS.  All policies shall include a 
waiver of subrogation in favor of Client. 

f. WFS shall provide Client with certificates of insurance evidencing compliance with the above insurance 
requirements prior to commencing it services.   

7. Miscellaneous.   

 a. Titles used in this Agreement are for general reference and are not a part of the Agreement. 

 b. This Agreement shall be interpreted as though prepared by both parties. 

 c. Any provision of this Agreement held to violate any law shall be deemed void, and all remaining 
provisions shall continue in full force and effect. 

 d. This Agreement shall be interpreted under the laws of the State of California. 

 e. This Agreement comprises a final and complete repository of the understandings between the parties 
and supersedes all prior or contemporary communications, representations or agreements, whether oral or 
written, relating to the subject matter of this Agreement. 

 f. Any notices given pursuant to this agreement shall be effective on the third business day after posting 
by first class mail, postage prepaid, to the address appearing immediately after the signatures below. 

 g. WFS shall not be liable for damages resulting from the actions or inactions of governmental agencies 
including, but not limited to, permit processing or environmental impact reports. 

 h. WFS’s waiver of any term, condition, or covenant, or breach of any term, condition, or covenant, shall 
not constitute the waiver of any subsequent breach of any other term, condition or covenant. 

 i. WFS shall not responsible for the performance of services by third parties not retained by WFS.  

3-6



Nevada County Consolidated Fire District 
640 Coyote Street, Nevada City, CA  95959 

(530) 265-4431 FAX (530) 265-4438 
nccfire@nccfire.com ● www.nccfire.com 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Fleet and Facilities Supervisor Greene, through Fire Chief Robitaille 

Date: February 7, 2023 

Re: Fire Station 86 Architecture services 

Background: 

The district requested bids for the architectural services for the interior design of the remodel of station 86. 
The procedure was followed per purchasing policy, section 209.4.3. Staff received and opened bids on 
January 17, 2023.   

Recommendation: 

Staff requests the Board to authorize Fleet and Facilities Supervisor Greene to accept the lowest responsible 
bid and be authorized to sign on behalf of the district for interior architectural services at station 86.    

Fiscal Implications: 

The lowest responsible bid received was in the amount of $31,150.00. This project would be funded through Fund 
758-5, Facilities.  

Requested Motion: 

Adopt resolution 23-02, accepting the lowest responsible bid for the interior architectural services for station 86 
and authorizing Fleet and Facilities Supervisor Greene to sign documents on behalf of the district for this project. 

4-1

mailto:nccfire@nccfire.com
http://www.nccfire.com/


Nevada County Consolidated Fire District 

Resolution 23-02 

Accepting the Lowest Responsible Bid, Russell  
Davidson Architecture & Design, for Station 86 Architectural Services 

and Designating an Agent to Sign Bid Documents on Behalf of the 
District 

Resolution 23-02 
February 16, 2023 

WHEREAS, the Nevada County Consolidated Fire District Board of Directors (Board) has identified 
funding in fund 758-5, Facilities in fiscal year 2023/2024 for architectural services for the interior of Station 86, 
12337 Banner Lava Cap Road, Nevada City, CA, and;  

WHEREAS, following the NCCFD Purchasing Policy, 1 bid was received by the specified deadline of 
January 17, 2023 at 3:00 p.m. at 640 Coyote Street, Nevada City, CA 95959; and  

          WHEREAS, after review, Staff determined that Russell Davidson Architecture & Design, had the 
lowest, responsible bid in the amount of $ 31,150.00; and,  

          WHEREAS, the Board of Directors designates Fleet and Facilities Supervisor Kevin Greene, as the 
agent to sign on behalf of the District, all documents pertaining to the architectural services for the interior of 
Station 86.  

         NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Nevada County 
Consolidated Fire District hereby approves the architectural services for the interior of Station 86 and accepts 
Russell Davidson Architecture and Design with their bid of $31,150.00.  

          PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Nevada County Consolidated Fire 
District at their Regular Board Meeting held on the 16th day of February, 2023 by the following roll call vote: 

Ayes: 
Noes: 
Absent: 
Abstain: 

_____________________________________ 
Keith Grueneberg, President of the Board 
Nevada County Consolidated Fire District 

Attest: 

______________________________________ 
Tricia Bush, Secretary of the Board  

4-2



4-3



4-4



4-5



4-6



4-7



4-8



4-9



4-10



4-11



4-12



4-13



4-14



NCCFD AUDIT RFP  
2/23/2023 
Page 1 

 
 
 
 
 

NEVADA COUNTY CONSOLIDATED 
FIRE DISTRICT 

 
 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 
 

AUDIT SERVICES FOR FISCAL YEARS ENDING 
June 30, 2023 
June 30, 2024 
June 30, 2025  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

February 16, 2023 
 
 

5-1



NCCFD AUDIT RFP  
2/23/2023 
Page 2 

 
 

I. INTRODUCTION 
 

The Board of Directors is interested in receiving proposals from qualified firms to provide 
accounting and auditing services to the Nevada County Consolidated Fire District (NCCFD) 
for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2023, June 30, 2024, and June 30, 2025 

 
The closing date for the submittal of a proposal is May 4, 2023, at 5:00 p.m.   

 
II. SCOPE OF WORK 
 

A. Provide a scope of the audit or audit plan to the district’s Board of Directors for their review 
and approval at least thirty (30) days before the audit work begins. 

B. Compile, from information provided by Nevada County and the NCCFD, the financial 
statements, notes to financial statements, and supplementary information to be included in 
the District’s Annual Financial Report. 

C. Prepare for the California State Controller, NCCFD’s Statement of Assets, Liabilities, and 
Fund Balance.  This must be submitted to the State Controller’s Office to meet the filing 
deadline as required by the State of California.  Quote separately. 

D. Prepare all work papers necessary to summarize and consolidate information to be included 
in the Annual Audit. 

E. Review existing accounting practices to ensure compliance with the Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practices (GAAP) and the California State Uniform System for accounting 
procedures, and to all applicable laws. 

F. Provide, as required, assistance to the District concerning all phases of Governmental Fund 
Accounting and bookkeeping practices. 

G. Prepare financial statements at the close of each fiscal year to the state, as may be required 
by applicable special district laws and regulations. 

H. Make recommendations to the Board concerning the most advantageous method of 
financing all capital acquisitions, if requested. 

I. Analyze the financial position of the District when requested by the Board. 

J. Be responsible for producing all exhibits and the subsequent proofing.  After final proofing, 
the Annual Audit will be bound and submitted to NCCFD. 

K. Plan the engagements to allow for a completion date no later than 120 days following the 
close of the fiscal year, with a report to the NCCFD Board of Directors within thirty (30) 
days of completing the audit, to include comments on any practices found that, in the 
opinion of the auditors, are inappropriate or place the District’s assets at risk. 

5-2



NCCFD AUDIT RFP  
2/23/2023 
Page 3 

L. Provide day-to-day accounting assistance to NCCFD staff, when required, concerning 
questions that may arise as to the proper accounting treatment of transactions. 

M. Any other accounting and/or auditing service above and beyond the normal scope of this 
service and not defined above, which may be requested by the Board of Directors, may be 
negotiated. 

III.  PROPOSAL FORMAT 

A. General Information 

1. Provide the name and address of the firm, the date established, and a brief description 
of the firm’s history. 

2. Describe briefly the experience and professional achievements of the person or persons 
in your firm who would be assigned to work on this account. 

3. Describe the current software used by your firm and its compatibility with NCCFD 
Accounting Program QuickBooks Premier. 

B. Experience 

1. Describe briefly the Governmental Fund Accounting experience relating to other 
special districts similar to the NCCFD. 

2. Describe any other governmental accounting experience. 

3. Identify each public agency and the names of an official of each public agency who 
may be contacted for references, and a phone number. 

C. Other Information 

Include any additional information about your firm that would aid the NCCFD in 
evaluating your competence, capabilities, and resources.  Please keep comments brief and 
to the point. 

D. Compensation 

1. State the all-inclusive price and estimated total hours as outlined in the Scope of Work. 

2. Staff travel, clerical, and printing expenses must be included in the abovementioned 
price. 

3. State whether data processing will be used in the audit examination(s) and if so, 
estimate the data processing resources NCCFD will need to supply in terms of 
computer time and operator time.  Note that programmer time will not be available 
from NCCFD. 

 

5-3



NCCFD AUDIT RFP  
2/23/2023 
Page 4 

IV.  EVALUATION OF PROPOSALS 

A. A screening committee will review each proposal to ascertain the top three firms.  These 
firms may be invited to an oral interview for the final selection.  Final selection will be 
based on the firm’s response as outlined in the “Proposal Format” section of the RFP, the 
oral interviews, and the total compensation for services rendered. 

B. The top three firms will be identified for the Board of Directors, and NCCFD reserves the 
right to award the contract to the firm that, in the opinion of NCCFD, is best qualified to 
provide the required audit services. 

C. NCCFD reserves the right to reject any or all proposals, either in their entirety or in part, 
and to retain all proposals, whether solicited or rejected. 

D. NCCFD reserves the right to negotiate minor deviations to the proposal with the successful 
firm. 

V.  DEADLINE 

 Submit ten copies of your proposal no later than 5:00 p.m. on May 4, 2023, to NCCFD, 
 C/O Jason Robitaille, 640 Coyote Street, Nevada City, CA  95959.  Late                                                                                                                                            
 proposals will not be considered.  Proposals will be submitted in a sealed envelope, 
 clearly marked NCCFD – RFP for Audit Services. 

VI.  SUBMITTING PROPOSALS 

Proposals will be accepted at the Administrative Office, 640 Coyote Street, Nevada City, 
CA  95959, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday (except 
legal holidays), until the date and time specified under “Deadline”. All proposals must be 
signed and dated by the submitter. 

VII. INQUIRIES 

Prospective auditing firms requiring additional information or clarification about this RFP 
must submit their questions in writing via email to nicolelong@nccfire.com. Responses will 
be made to all inquiries during the Comment Period, which will run from April 3 to April 30, 
2023.  Interested parties should refrain from making personal contact with NCCFD officials or 
any other persons associated with this RFP, and attempts to make inappropriate contacts may 
be grounds for disqualification from the selection process.  If any inquiry submitted to the 
email address above raises an item of interest to all bidders or the need for an important 
clarification related to the RFP process, the inquiry and response may be disseminated to all 
potential bidders by email.  All inquiries and responses will remain anonymous. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

5-4

mailto:nicolelong@nccfire.com


NCCFD AUDIT RFP  
2/23/2023 
Page 5 

VIII. CONFLICT OF INTEREST                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
 
Bidder warrants and covenants that no official or employee of the NCCFD, nor any business 
entity in which an official of the NCCFD has an interest, has been employed or retained to 
solicit or aid in the procuring of the resulting contract, nor that any such person will be 
employed in the performance of such contract without immediate divulgence of such fact to 
the NCCFD.  

 

5-5



 
 Nevada County Consolidated Fire District 
 640 Coyote Street, Nevada City, CA 95959 

 (530) 265-4431 FAX (530) 265-4438 
 nccfire@nccfire.com ● www.nccfire.com 

 
 
 

To: NCCFD Board of Directors  

From: Fire Marshal Mason, through Fire Chief Robitaille 

Date: February 9, 2023 

Re: RFP For Prevention Services 

Background: 

With the retirement of Terry McMahan, the Department of Fire Prevention has a vacant position for the 
Deputy Fire Marshal. We attempted to fill the position with internally and was unsuccessful. Staff created 
an external, non-safety Fire Prevention Officer I position and was once again unsuccessful.  

Recommendation: 

The Department of Fire Prevention would like to open a Request for Proposal (RFP) for Fire Prevention / 
Inspector services. We will be requesting information for a third-party company to provide fire and life 
safety inspections within our fire district.  This fire inspector’s assignment will be to complete pre-plans, 
general, and operational permit inspections of commercial occupancies. 

Fiscal Implications: 

Currently unknown. 

Requested Motion: 

Motion to allow Fire Marshal Patrick Mason to go out to RFP for Fire Prevention / Inspector services. 

6-1

mailto:nccfire@nccfire.com
http://www.nccfire.com/


 

7-1



8-1



8-2



8-3



8-4



8-5



https://www.theunion.com/news/seeking-solutions-nevada-county-�re-districts-carry-unfair-
costs/article_47289120-a9a5-11ed-bc55-7b302e5ef7b3.html

Marianne Boll-See | Staff Writer
Feb 11, 2023

Fire engines and crews go on about 7 — 10 calls for each day that they provide service, according to CJ Bryant a district ad
District, which is at risk of shutting down. Budgets are tight, and a meeting at the �rehouse scheduled for Feb. 14 will disc

9-1

https://www.googleadservices.com/pagead/aclk?sa=L&ai=CqojWM37qY_z0HIao998P-Ya1gAnsrOz1bpmN0t2WEd3ZHhABIKeKxQRgyZ7uhsij_BqgAbDEkJEDyAECqAMByAPJBKoEzgJP0OBeXY26Hv6TfKqzOe9q6-QJO8LvmS7yGMHbUBEAyEaIov_2ahpkyMLy986hnHhU7Iv4m2VgxPwr0w2TCgekX759_YXbgrnCO_dYVqFJMT9ydY4elRzgGyFLoWhtFpHPcCqcuQTSyUBO2LgJq_oOY02yAog4UpjjaFVGbTNxF_p1A0Mw31diu2XD4dKTuUiFTLDVCaynpUbXgDJRKtDdgXUUsVArn5RX1KKoELIqle00jH9WaNurZQjUN-fKGSSCk4_1ZaWedw-6K_nAuE25_cPbwc4azzlRCCZsiVD1tx05oFA8NTsyC__fPHiTczl6TE92bLvtmKI5l8qXzRA-pN_TgIGbLttQLFL5Z2kuTn1ZCAE01UqNiPV8cifLRS80npICBnIUEM4R9aNMRoiWe4-LHHH2OCHEXbl2wmQ8zQpTlfDvg9FTewKnAPRrwAS6m9WmngSgBgKAB7i7726oB47OG6gHk9gbqAfulrECqAf-nrECqAeko7ECqAfVyRuoB6a-G6gHmgaoB_PRG6gHltgbqAeqm7ECqAf_nrECqAffn7EC2AcB0ggPCIBhEAEYHzICigI6AoBAsQnkl679wyi0loAKAZgLAcgLAbgMAdgTDdAVAZgWAfgWAYAXAQ&ae=1&num=1&cid=CAQSPADUE5ymOc-Zgl6337Qfczn_xkfLQvhd27jE2Ms-fTnd2Niipp4jPKob3Xt5cWk2nVjPtZyE72PjaTbc3xgB&sig=AOD64_2X6COPzpaZ6H7oXSCliQ1UmrNHBg&client=ca-pub-1168130439607626&rf=2&nb=17&adurl=https://www.yosemite.com/winter/%3Fgclid%3DEAIaIQobChMIvNqzoY2T_QIVBtT9BR15Qw2QEAEYASAAEgLQpvD_BwE


Financial trouble is not uncommon among fire districts in Nevada County with

increases in regulations competing with the costs of payroll, engines and

stations.

Those financial troubles have hit the Rough and Ready Fire Protection District

(RR) so hard recently, that they are at risk of shutting down due to an especially

tight budget.

Financial officer Sheridan Loungway, who serves on the RR board of directors,

will continue to do everything possible to keep our the commitment to the

community that they will not close down.

“We have a budget and it’s tight. Sometimes it’s like robbing Peter to pay Paul,”

Loungway said. “We have had fundraisers, sold equipment, and written grants,

but we know what the problem is. No one wants to put their finger on it.” He

also stated that they will meet all their financial obligations.

Neighboring fire districts are having their own difficulties with finances.

Servicing nearby districts is necessary in emergencies when their engines just

can’t get to the location in time due to geography.

Nevada County Consolidated Fire Department is a good example of a

neighboring district that relies on RR, according to Carole “CJ” Bryant, district

administrator.

“All fire districts are interoperational to an extent,” Grass Valley Fire Chief Mark

Buttron said. “Our Brighton St. station has been responding to provide

assistance during RR’s brown out days,” meaning the two days when the ‘C shift’

9-2



at RR is not in operation, Grass Valley Fire Department covers their calls.

“We know what the biggest problem is. [Nevada County] Consolidated district 

pulled out of their old station, that is now a thrift store or something, and built a 

new station further out, so we have to service calls in their area,” Loungway said. 

“ We feel it is unfair because we don’t get compensated…We spend more time 

and energy on more calls servicing the district to the east of ours and Penn 

Valley, causing us to pay salaries with overtime, leaving nothing for other parts 

of our budget like building and maintenance.”

At meeting on Feb. 14 at 6:30 p.m. at the Rough and Ready Firehouse, the Board 

will dive into the steps that RR will have to take and will need to implement 

before going forward. It will take working together with the firefighter’s union, 

the Penn Valley Fire District board members, and Nevada County to make this a 

reality. At this moment, no merger has been approved.

Requirements imposed by the state of California are also part of the problem.

“It’s not like the old days when we had more people on the calls,” Bryant said. 

“We have a fully paid staff. Volunteers are now required to have the same 

certification as firefighters that are employed. We are not a volunteer district.”

It is a misconception that Rough and Ready Fire Protection District runs on 

volunteers. They even had to change the signage in front of the station to convey 

the change.

The brown out days have been another way that the fire protection district has 

tried to tighten their belt. According to Bryant they have “gone down every 

avenue."

9-3



Currently, rotating brown outs have eliminated one third of their shifts, leaving

constituents in the fire protection district unprotected during those times.

Feeling like they have exhausted every option and made so many cuts or

reductions in service, RR has approached the Consolidated Fire District, but

without success. Possible mergers with Penn Valley Fire Protection District do

not look feasible either, yet are still being discussed.

“Consolidated has said, ‘We don’t want you,’ apparently. That’s what I’ve heard

from the committee. They are having their own financial problems up there…

We’ve always known that Penn Valley has said, ‘If you can’t run it on that kind of

money, we can’t run it on that kind of money,’” Bryant said.

“Loss of an engine company has a profound effect on everyone,” Chief Button

said.”We are already at our limit. It causes a ripple effect.”

The next steps may involve working with The California Association of Local

Agency Formation Commissions (LAFCO), a non-profit organization, Buttron,

Bryant and Loungway have all said.

“We’ve asked for realignment of district maps; it seems like the most logical

solution. The other districts don’t want to give up their revenue out of self

preservation, and I can understand that,” Bryant said. “There are a lot of moving

parts to the picture. LAFCO will probably put out a study.”

The LAFCO study is estimated to cost over $100,000 according to Bryant.

9-4



Smaller sized fire districts with less tax revenue may seek solutions such as 

redrawing district lines for a more equitable distribution of tax revenue 

throughout the county. The problem at the moment is that the Rough and 

Ready Fire Protection District receives the lowest funding.

“If we could realign the districts, we could serve those districts full time that we 

already do serve to some extent. We don’t want to close down, and no way will 

we lose our building,” Loungway said, referring to their station built in 2012.

“We have gone down the road and up the avenue to think of everything,” Bryant 

said. “We are down to what we just can not do without.”

To contact Staff Writer Marianne Boll-See, email mboll-see@theunion.com.

9-5

mailto:mboll-see@theunion.com


CHIEFS
MONTHLY
REPORT

N E V A D A  C O U N T Y
C O N S O L I D A T E D

F I R E  D I S T R I C T

P R E P A R E D  B Y :

Fire Chief Jason Robitaille
Division Chief Patrick Sullivan
Fire Marshal Patrick Mason 

february 16, 2023
Regular Board Meeting 



Testing for Captains and Battalion Chief has
begun. There are 5 candidates in each rank
that will test. The testing will be done by the
end of March.

Alta Sierra Homeowners Assn. donated $200
to Station 89.

LAFCO- SR Jones (Robitaille)

Ophir Hill Fire- Chief Rothenberger (Robitaille)

Higgins Fire District- Chief Good (Robitaille)

State OES Region 4- Chief Corey Zander
(Robitaille)

County CEO- Alison Lehman (Robitaille)

Firewise- Jamie Jones (Robitaille)

Cal Fire- Chief Estes (Robitaille)

 Grass Valley Fire- Chief Buttron (Robitaille)

Penn Valley Fire- Chief Wagner (Robitaille)

County Chiefs Meeting (Robitaille/ Sullivan)

District Battalion Chiefs Meeting (Robitaille/ 
 Sullivan)

Law Enforcement Fire Council (Robitaille/
Sullivan)

CISM Team Meeting (Sullivan)

 ADMINISTRATION

 MEETINGS

JANUARY
HIGHLIGHTS

NEVADA COUNTY CONSOLIDATED



 3 Structure Fires   45% FIRE / 54% EMS - 134 CFS
 6:08 minutes average travel time for first due units. 

SUPPRESSION
254 CALLS FOR SERVICE

Attended the Public Comment session for the Fire Hazard Severity Zone update.
Attended the Board of Supervisors meeting for the public comment to the Cannabis
Ordinance Update.
Met with CDA to discuss fire inspection processes for Commercial Cannabis operation
renewals. 
One Part Time DSI inspector was hired in OES, I spent a day assisting with training.
Met with another section of the Greenhorn Firewise Community and provided guidance on
the recommended removal of roadside vegetation.

The Mighty Acorns Preschool visited Station 84 for a Public Education event. E-84 crew did
a fabulous job.
Lead DSI Inspector Roger Tucker has resigned his position to work in the field of private
insurance.

FIRE PREVENTION
Meetings:

Comments:

JANUARY
MONTHLY STATISTICS

NEVADA COUNTY CONSOLIDATED


	Item 1: Meeting Minutes 01/19/2023
	Item 2: Fund Balances
	Check History Report
	Credit Card History Report
	Item 3: Engagement Letter with Willdan
	Item 4: Resolution 23-02
	Item 5: Request for Proposal FY 22/23 Financial Audit
	Item 6: Request for Proposal for Professional Fire and Life Safety Inspection Services
	Item 7: Correspondence- Thank you card and Donation
	Item 8: CSDA Board of Directors Call for Nominations Seat C
	Item 9: Union Article Regarding Rough & Ready Fire
	Chiefs Monthly Report



